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1. What is an Extension Hearing as it relates to CINA/TPR Hearings?

An Extension Hearing may include any other Court postponement or Court-ordered request to extend the time to respond to a CINA/TPR matter.

2. Should Guardianship Review Hearings be included in 2.24A?

Yes.  Guardianship Review Hearings should be included in Section 2.24 A. 

3. Can we bill for Ancillary Contacts? If so, at what rate?

No.  Ancillary contacts are included as part of the FLFUP.  Please see Section 3.4 E of the RFP.  

4. Previously, Appeal hearings were considered separate? Are they still separately billable? If not, why?  No.  Appellate Hearings are not separately billable.  For this Contract, Appellate Hearings are now included within the listing of permitted CINA/TPR proceedings.  Please see Section 2.24 A.
5. Why is there a $300 cap per client on the Voluntary Placement Proceedings when counsel still has to attend court hearings, visits, and meetings as with any other client? 

The rationale for capping CINA/TPR Voluntary Placement Proceedings at $300 

is based upon Program experience and historical Attorney Invoice data received    

statewide.  Based upon this data, the Program reserves the right to place a reasonable cap on the allowance for this new Provision in the RFP.  

6. Contacts with Client- what is the expectation with regard to how often child’s counsel must visit out of state clients?  

Attorneys shall have meaningful client contact with the client prior to every scheduled hearing.  At a minimum, Attorney in-person contact with the client shall be in the client’s placement at least once every six months.  This provision includes out of state placements.  Please see Section 3.4 D.
7. Do school and daycare settings constitute an acceptable location for attorney in person contact?

Yes.  As long as the school and daycare environments will facilitate effective communication with the Client. 

8. Appeals- The RFP states contractors shall actively participate in and appear at a proceeding before the case FLFUP is payable. Does submission of a brief allow for billing? 
The Department will not provide compensation for the mere filing of a Line in an Appeal.  Contractors shall, at a minimum, file an Appellate Brief with the Appellate Court in order to bill the Department. 
9. Can the investigator, case worker, licensed social worker employed by a contractor attend meetings indicated in 4.4D1?
No.  These are Attorney-in-person contacts.   
10. Conflicts of interest- When you represent a sibling group at shelter and adjudicatory hearing within 30 days and have to conflict one child out, why can’t counsel bill? Pursuant to RFP Section 5.1, Contractors are permitted to bill in the scenario presented by this question.  If within thirty (30) days of an Adjudicatory Hearing a conflict arises with a sibling group, and Attorney case preparation/investigation, legal research and/or legal representation has been rendered by the Contractor on behalf of the client and/or sibling group, such representation is billable under the Contract.  
11. How will conflicts be assigned? 
In single-bid jurisdictions, case conflicts are re-assigned by the Circuit Court of the Jurisdiction in which the Petition was filed, and with the assistance of the Maryland Legal Services Program who will locate a private attorney through the Court Appointed Attorney Program (CAAP).  In multiple-bid jurisdictions, case conflicts are re-assigned by the Circuit Court of the Jurisdiction in which the Petition was filed, and will be made pursuant to DHR contract awards and Contractor ranking in the given jurisdiction.  

In CINA/TPR matters, case conflicts are also assigned pursuant to a Shelter Care Calendar prepared by the Maryland Legal Services Program in multiple-bid jurisdictions.
12. Are CINA and TPR hearings billed separately?  Yes, CINA and TPR Hearings are billed separately.  However, Contractors can only bill once per year per client for any case.  Please refer to Section 2.24 of the RFP.
13. In Baltimore City, will there be a monthly shelter care calendar?  Yes. 
14. If a new provider is awarded a jurisdiction, is the only way to get a caseload through new shelters or will cases be transferred? 
If a new provider is awarded a jurisdiction, their caseload may be developed through the assignment of new cases filed in the jurisdiction, and/or through case transfers deemed appropriate in that jurisdiction, by the Court and the State Project Manager.  

15. In Section 2.24 of the RFP, it states that contractors shall only bill one time annually for each CINA/TPR case.  In all TPR cases handled under this contract, there is always an ongoing CINA case.  It would appear from this language that the Fixed Unit Price per Client could only be billed for one of the two ongoing cases.  Yet on Attachment I, there appears two distinct entries for CINA and for TPR cases.  Can a contractor bill for the CINA and bill a second time during the same contract when a TPR case has one of the required hearings? 
No. See response to question number 12.
16. Can the number of TPR proceedings expected to be filed each contract year in each jurisdiction be provided?  No, these hearings cannot be predicted. 
17. Is the 8 hour minimum per case annually calculated as an average using both CINA and TPR cases?  For example, if an attorney handles a CINA case and devotes only two hours during the contract year but also handles a TPR case for another client and devotes 14 hours to it during the contract year, has the 8 hour per case minimum been met?  No.  The Contractor shall dedicate a minimum of 8 hours per case, per client annually.  
18. Does the Department of Human Resources guarantee that it will offer at least 24 hours of legal education and training required under Section 3.4 H of the RFP at no cost to contractors?  No. MLSP may sponsor trainings or facilitate court-mandated trainings for all Contracted Attorneys during a Contract year to ensure that Contractors are properly trained in Maryland’s CINA/TPR practice and child welfare law. 

19. Will the Department of Human Resources provide a list of the location of all out-of-state placements for each jurisdiction so that cost estimates for travel can be incorporated into the financial proposal since In-Person contact with out-of-state clients is required under Section 3.4 D(2)?  Yes.     
20. Today in response to a question about the low, fixed amount for voluntary placements, it was stated:
The rationale for capping CINA/TPR Voluntary Placement Proceedings at $300 is based upon Program experience and historical Attorney Invoice data received statewide. Based upon this data, the Program reserves the right to place a reasonable cap on the allowance for this new provision in the RFP.

Did the Program consider that the attorney's invoice for a voluntary placement does not reflect the work done for the entire contract year but rather the work done prior the first billable hearing and that an attorney will continue to have (but not invoice) subsequent court hearings, treatment team meeting, Family Involvement Meetings, placement visits in the months following the first Voluntary Placement hearing for the year?  Yes.

21. What obligation does a successful bidder have for accepting voluntary placement cases?  The selected Offeror(s) shall be responsible for all services as required by Section 2.19 Contractor’s Responsibilities.
22. Do the projected caseload numbers set forth in the chart on Attachment A include Voluntary Placement cases?  No.
23.  Under section 5.5 (B), the required caseload requirements are one attorney for each 100 clients, does this caseload requirement include Voluntary Placement cases? Yes.
24.  Is a bidder to set forth the number of Voluntary Placement cases that they are willing to assume? No. Offerors shall rely on Attachments A and A-1 for the projected caseloads. 
25. Are carry-over Voluntary Placement cases to be listed in a particular place on Attachment A-2?  Yes, Offerors should capture this information in the carry-over cases column of Attachment A-2.  

26. In completing Attachment A-2, is the requested caseload number for year one to include all of the carry-over cases? No.
27. Is it correct that the caseload requirement of one attorney per 100 clients is evaluated at a particular point in time? In other words, the caseload requirement is not 100 cases per year? No. The requirement is 100 cases per attorney at any point throughout the contract term.

28. When a provider is awarded contracts in multiple jurisdictions, is it correct to assume that the maximum number of clients per any one attorney is 100 clients, regardless of whether that attorney serves clients in one or in multiple jurisdictions? Yes. 

29.  When making staffing projections, is there a given number or percentage of cases each year that a provider is permitted to project will close, e.g. in a jurisdiction of 125 cases, a projection could be made that 25 cases will close in a year and, therefore, require one attorney?  No. 

30.  Is an attorney who is assigned 100 cases expected to work as a full-time employee with 100% of their time performing work under the CINA/TPR contract?  Is there a formula for the percentage of time required for an attorney with less than 100 clients at a given time? If so, what is that formula? No. It is up to the Offeror to provide sufficient qualified attorneys to meet the requirements of the RFP.  See Section 5.5 B of the RFP.
31.  If an attorney has full-time paralegal assistance, is there a different percentage of time that a full-time employee is expected to devote to work under the contract? If so, what is that formula for calculating that percentage? Please provide an example. No.  It is up to the Offeror to provide sufficient qualified staff to meet the requirements of the RFP.
32. If an attorney has full-time paralegal assistance, will the same ration of one attorney per 100 clients apply or will that attorney be allowed more flexibility with regard to the 1:100 ratio? The attorney/client ratio remains 1:100.

33. Section 5.5 (B)(1) and section 3.4 (C)(1) are not consistent; may the investigation detailed in section 3.4 (C)(1) be supervised in the same manner as set forth in section 5.5 (B)(1)?  Investigators with less than two years experience shall be supervised by an Attorney that meets the two-year Maryland-specific experience requirement. 

34. Section 3.3 appears to be a change from the current practice of assigning set shelter care days to a particular provider in multi-provider jurisdictions. Is a change intended to the manner in which shelter cares will be assigned?  No. Shelter care days are assigned based on Contractor ranking and caseload awarded.

35. Can you provide an explicit example of how shelter days will be assigned?  Please see response to question 34. 

36. In a two-provider jurisdiction, if the highest-overall-ranking provider bids for half of the potential cases in the jurisdiction will they be on shelter care coverage until they reach their maximum number or will there be some alternating schedule or formula?  No.  MLSP will prepare alternating schedules.

37. In a two provider jurisdiction, if the highest-overall-ranking provider bids for half of the potential cases in the jurisdiction but currently does not have enough carry-over cases to meet their maximum number of case, will carry-over cases from another provider be reassigned or will they be assigned shelter care coverage to meet their maximum number of cases bid?  The Offeror is not guaranteed to receive the maximum number of cases bid.  Please see question 13.

38. Will there be a formula for dividing existing and new cases to a provider in jurisdictions where more than one contract is awarded? If so, what will that formula be?  Please provide an example. Please refer to Section 1.1 of the RFP. 

39.  For a new provider to a jurisdiction, who is awarded a contract in a jurisdiction where there is more than one provider, is there a formula to assign carry-over and new caseloads? If so, what will that formula be? Please provide an example. See response to question 13.

40. For a provider who has been representing clients in a jurisdiction, has an existing caseload, and is awarded part of a contract for a jurisdiction, what will be the formula for assigning new cases? Please provide an example. Please refer to Section 1.1 of the RFP and the response to question 13.  

41. The description is unclear with respect to DHR's intentions regarding transfer of existing clients to a new provider. Does DHR intend to transfer ongoing cases to the new provider? It depends, if necessary and in the best interest of the client to do so.    

42. What procedure and factors will the State Project Manager utilize under section 5.13 to determine whether an attorney shall remain the attorney of record in a case where the provider has not been awarded a contract for that jurisdiction? Cases will be transitioned to the new Contractor(s). Consideration will be given in each case to continuity of representation and the best interest of the client.  

43. Have any subcontracting arrangements, as described in section 2.19 have been approved by the State for the current CINA/TPR contract?  Yes.  Under the current CINA/TPR and Adult contracts, only MBE non-core subcontracts were permitted.      

44. Under section 2.24(A)(4), do review hearings include permanency plan review hearing? Do review hearings also include guardianship review hearings?  Yes.  See Amendment # 3.
45. The description is unclear with respect to DHR's intentions regarding transfer of existing clients to the new provider. Does DHR intend to transfer ongoing cases to the new provider?  Yes.  See response to question number 41.
46. If clients are transferred, how many are anticipated for each jurisdiction?  This information will not be available until after Contract award.   
47. Has there ever been any studies, inquiries, analyses, recommendations or analyses regarding the costs and effectiveness of the CINA program in the last 4 years? Yes.  The Department routinely conducts fiscal analyses and reviews of all contracts and services. 

48. Did any people or unit of the Agency recommend that lower cost providers be sought or questioned whether the government was obtaining CINA work at good, competitive prices?    No.  However, the Department routinely conducts fiscal analyses and reviews of all contracts and services. 
49. Exactly what was the outcome of the protest and when was it decided?  Where can new bidders see copies of the protest, the Agency’s response and protest decision?  These issues will help us determine whether or not we can offer what the Government wants.
The protest was denied internally.  No appeal was filed.  See copy of protest and response attached. 

50. When the offer for a case is made, what information about the case will be conveyed? We are concerned that the higher ranked contractor can “cherry pick” the cases by choosing only the easier ones and let another contractor handle the tough ones. If there is no information which we think is the only fair way to do this, then availability of staff would be the only determining factor or are there others?  New cases are assigned by the Court.  Attorneys will receive whatever client case information through the Court that is available at the time of assignment. There is no pre-screening by the Department or the Contractor. 
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